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Office Phone: 513-887-3154
Office Fax: 513-887-3149

130 High Street
BUTLER COUNTY AUDITOR Hamilton, Ohio 45011

June 28, 2017

To the Citizens and Board of Commissioners of Butler County:

Butler County is required by Ohio law to prepare an annual financial report using generally accepted
accounting principles. It is our pleasure to present the Butler County Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
(CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2016

The CAFR is prepared in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles as set forth by the
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other recognized authoritative sources and contains
basic financial statements, supplemental statements, and other financial and statistical information, providing
complete and full disclosure of all material financial aspects of Butler County for 2016. This report is presented
in fulfilment of the financial reporting requirements and is representative of our continual commitment to
provide accurate and timely financial information to the citizens of Butler County.

Management assumes full responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in this
report based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control. Because the cost of internal control should
not exceed anticipated benefits, management's objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute,
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

Our independent auditor, Julian & Grube, Incorporated, has issued an unmodified opinion on Butler County’'s
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016. The independent auditor’s report is presented as
the first component of the financial section of this report.

Management provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial
statements in the form of a Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with the MD&A, which can be found
immediately following the independent auditor’s report.

REPORTING ENTITY

Butler County, established in 1803, was one of Ohio’s original eight counties. The elected three-member Board
of County Commissioners functions as the primary legislative and executive branch of the County. Each
commissioner serves a term of four years. In addition, the Auditor, who serves as the chief fiscal officer and
real estate property assessor for the County, and the Treasurer, who collects property taxes and is the
custodian of all funds, are also elected to four-year terms. Other elected officials serving four-year terms
include the Prosecuting Attorney, Sheriff, Engineer, Clerk of Courts, Recorder, and Coroner. Judges presiding
over the Court of Common Pleas, Domestic Relations Court, Juvenile Court, Probate Court, and the County
Court are also elected on a countywide basis.

The County provides its citizens with a wide range of services that include human and social services, health
and community assistance related services, civil and criminal justice system services, road and bridge
maintenance, and other general and administrative support services. The County maintains enterprise funds to
account for the water and sewer system operations. The County also maintains internal service funds for
workers’ compensation and health insurance.
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Julian & Grube, Inc.

Serving Ohio Local Governments
333 County Line Rd. West, Westerville, OH 43082  Phone: 614.846.1899  Fux: 614.846.2799

Independent Auditor's Report

Butler County
130 High Street
Hamilton, Ohio 45011

To the Board of County Commissioners:
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information
of Butler County, Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise Butler County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing, and
maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements
of the Butler County Port Authority, which represent 57.5 percent, 0.9 percent, and 5.2 percent, respectively, of the
assets, net position, and revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component units. Those statements were
audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amount
included for the Butler County Port Authority, is based solely on the report of other auditors. We audited in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and
perform the audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to Butler County’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not to the extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of Butler County's internal control. Accordingly, we express
no opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the
reasonableness of their significant accounting estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement
presentation.

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.
Opinion

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of Butler County, Ohio, as of December 31, 2016, and the respective changes in financial position and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the general, developmental
disabilities, job and family services/children services agency, and residential incentive districts and tax incremental
financings funds thereof for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America.



Independent Auditor's Report
Butler County

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include
Management's discussion and analysis, Schedules for infrastructure assets accounted for using the modified
approach, and schedules of net pension liability and pension contributions listed in the table of contents, to supplement
the basic financial statements. Although this information is not part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental
Accounti:  Standards Board considers it essential for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and compari  the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, to the basic financial statements. ana other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not opine or provide - assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to opine or provide any other
assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information
Our audit was conducted to opine on Butler County’s basic financial statements taken as a whole.

The introductory section, the financial section’s combining statements, individual fund statements and schedules and
the statistical section information present additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements.

The statements and schedules are management’s responsibility, and derive from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected these statements and
schedules to the auditing procedures we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional
procedures, includii  comparing and reconciling statements and schedules directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used 1 prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, these
statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as
a whole.

We did not subject the introductory section and statistical section information to the auditi:  procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion or any other assurance on them,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated June 28, 2017, on our
consideration of Butler County’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts anc  nt agreements and other matters. That report describes the scope of
our internal control testing over financial reporung and compliance, and the results of that testing, and does not opine
on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Butler County’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

ﬂl“f'l/ﬂ 4
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Julian & Grube, Inc.
June 28,2017
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BUTLER COUNTY, OHIO
MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(Unaudited)
Table 4
Butler County Outstanding Long-Term Debt

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
General Obligation Bonds $ 42,445,000 $ 47,260,000 $ 5,710,420 $ 6,494,900 $ 48,155,420 § 53,754,900
Special Assessment debt with

governmental commitment 5,745,340 6,677,850 - - 5,745,340 6,677,850

Long-term Loans 1,403,456 1,527,744 28,950,821 30,040,388 30,354,277 31,568,132
Revenue Bonds - - 32,869,190 38,063,850 32,869,190 38,063,850
Water Judgment Bonds - - 20,595,000 22,185,000 20,595,000 22,185,000
Capital Leases B 11,613 - 3,291 - 14,904
Total $ 49,593,796 § 55,477,207 $§ 88,125,431 $ 96,787,429 $§ 137,719,227 $ 152,264,636

The County’s long-term debt consisted of $74.5 million in obligations backed by the full faith and credit of Butler County,
including $48.2 million in general obligation bonds, $20.6 million in water judgment bonds, and $5.7 million in special
assessment bonds, for which Butler County is liable in case of default of the property owners subject to the assessment.
A total of $63.2 million of the total outstanding debt represent bonds secured by specified revenue sources, including
water and sewer revenues, and sales tax revenues.

Ohio law, through its direct and indirect debt limitations, restricts the amount of debt the County may issue. The
County’s total direct debt limit at December 31, 2016 was $184.8 million and the legal debt margin (debt limit minus net
debt) was $167.8 million. The County’s unvoted direct debt limit was $74.5 million and the unvoted direct debt margin
was $57.5 million. The debt margins for total debt and unvoted debt reflect a slight increase over the previous year due
to reductions in general obligation bonds and notes.

Ohio’s indirect debt limitation, referred to as the ten-mill limitation, further limits the total unvoted general obligation debt
that may be issued among overlapping subdivisions to a maximum of 10 mills per dollar of assessed valuation. Since
the 10 mills must be shared by the overlapping subdivisions, and is available on a first-come, first serve basis, the level
of debt issued by any overlapping political subdivision thus affects the County's ability to issue unvoted general
obligation debt.

For example, depending on how much room is available under the 10-mill limitation, a relatively small debt issuance by
an overlapping subdivision with a low assessed valuation could significantly hinder, or temporarily lock out, the County’s
ability to issue unvoted general obligation debt. This limitation would continue until unvoted general obligation debt was
retired by either subdivision, or until the total assessed value of the subdivision or the County increased, which occurs
around December of each year. The County continues to monitor the debt activity of all overlapping subdivisions for the
potential effect on future financings.

Butler County’s general obligation bond issues are rated at Aa1 and the sales tax bonds are Aa2 by Moody's Investors
Services. The water and sewer district currently maintains a credit rating from Moody’s of Aa3.

Besides the long-term bonds outstanding, the County also is liable for other long-term obligations in the form of capital
leases payable, claims payable, compensated absences payable and long term contracts payable. Governmental
activities capital leases had been paid off to a zero balance at year-end, for various equipment and vehicles throughout
the County. Claims payable at year-end was $3.6 million representing outstanding workers’ compensation claims
against the County. Compensated absences payable at year-end was $8.3 million for governmental activities and $0.8
million for business-type activities. The total liability for capital leases, claims, and compensated absences payable for
governmental and business-type activities was $12.7 million at December 31, 2016.

Contracts payable represent long term agreements for the payment of bonds issued by the Butler County
Transportation Improvement District and the Butler County Port Authority for economic growth. The County has pledged
revenues from the Voice of America TIF as one of the primary sources of revenue for these securities. The liability
remaining at the end of 2016 for these contracts is $27.1 million. Additional information about the County's long-term
obligations can be found in Note 17 to the financial statements.
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Butler County, Ohio
Statement of Net Position

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
In Segregated Accounts
With Fiscal Agents
Accounts Receivable
Facility Charges Receivable
Due from ! Jovernments
Accrued Interest Receivable
Prepaid Items
Internal Balances
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Property Taxes Receivable
Sales Tax Receivable
Other Local Taxes Receivable
Payments in Lieu of Taxes Receivable
Loans Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Receivables from Conduit Debt Receipients
Assets Held for e

Capital Assets:
Nondepreciable Capital Assets
Depreciable Capital Assets, net

Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred Ct on Refunding
Pension

Total Deferred ( ws of Resources
ities
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable
Accrued Wages and Benefits
Due to Other Governments
Matured Bonds Payable
Matured Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Payable
Refuridable Deposits
Unearned Revenue
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due Within One Year
Due In More ne Year:
Net Pension Lianility (See Note 12)
Other Amounts
Total Liabilities
Deferre ws of Resources
Deferrea wain on Refunding
Property Taxes not Levied to Finance Current

Year Operations

Payment in Lieu of Taxes not Intended to Finance

Current Year Operations
Pension
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted for:
Capital Outlay
Debt Service
Replacement and Improvement
Developmental Disabilities
Nonexpendable
Expe¢ :
Job ana ramily/Children Services A y
Elderly Services Levy

Mental Health and Addiction Recovery Services

Motor Vehicle

All Other Public Works

Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit}
Total Net Position

See accompanying notes to the basic finz

tatements

170,134,049

5,139
345,716
558,916

30,907,843
457,657
2,080,185
1,663
1,323,982
62,962,602
11,440,030
281,094
13,853,767
662,503
8,288,587

266,854,079

587,435

707,996
4,224,048
2,320,775

594,239

13,250
5,543

718,655

9,915,000

13,098,396

108,426,966

95,308
61,002,395

13,761,409

333,939,216

265,341
3,370,848
34,032,042
956,975
90,658
15,946,475
11,465,697
18,244,172
18,213,076
16,543,040
9,732,353

17
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54,431,091

500

4,146,740

664,957

174,535
(1,663)
239,028

691,589

10,337,088

620,154

178,296
144,753
154,172
1,325,234

785,077

135,485

9,734,314

8,433,207

220,397,627

5,300,000

$ 224,565,140

5,639
345,716
4,705,656

31,572,800
457,657
2,254,720
1,563,010
62,962,602
11,440,030
281,094
13,853,767
662,503
8,980,176

277,191,167

1,207,589

886,292
4,368,801
2,474,947
1,919,473
13,250
5,543
1,503,732
9,915,000

135,485

22,832,710

116,860,173

95,308
61,002,395

13,761,409

554,336,843

265,341
3,370,848
5,300,000

34,032,042

956,975
90,658

15,946,475

11,465,697

18,244,172

18,213,076

16,543,040
9,732,353

982,840

1,526,242
9,068
88,925
339,762

8,745

61,453,480
475,624

2,333,662

15,556
227,250

96,347

246,763

335,000

11,848,874



Butler County, Ohio
Statement of Activities

Governmental Activities

General Government:
L  ative and Executive $
L  ative and Executive - Intergovernmental
Juaicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

E Jervices

Conservation and Recreation

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Governmental Activities
Business-Type Activities
Sewer
Water

Total Business-Type Activities

Total Primary Government

Component Units

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

Operating Grants,
Charges for Contributions,

29,065,148 § 20,379,167 % -
9,140,959 - -
15,551,668 5,262,550 2,035,204
54,284,890 16,312,060 5,601,854
14,593,918 1,751,860 4,128,454
43,102,788 350,373 12,539,220
62,614,766 4,870,985 30,301,472
417,809 40,736 -
-’\'\r\nr/ Al ¥aY AD (\[""i £ A4 0 AN
22,774,378 19,199,522 -

General Revenues
Taxes Levied for:
General Purposes
Developmental Disabilities
Children Services Agency
Mental Health
Elderly Services Levy
Sales Tax
Local Taxes
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Grants and Entitlements not Restricted
to Specific Programs
Investment Earnings
Other
Total General Revenues

( in Net Position
Net Position at Beginning of Year-Restated(See Note 25)

Net Position at End of Year

18



Lapnal urams,
Contributions,

233,381
16,663,529

8,639,941

Governmental

$ (8,685,981)
(9,140,959)
(8,253,914)

(32,137,595)
7,949,925
(30,213,195)
(27,442,309)
(377,073)

e dam oanm

12,728,340
18,309,413
13,237,893
8,487,542
8,604,631
43,916,843
2,690,577
8,796,701

9,903,298
1,937,439

20,070,390

$

Business-Type

5,065,085

B8 AND arm

270

8,871,621

ArsAa tno Fon

19

$

(8,685,981)
(9,140,959)
(8,253,914)
(32,137,595)
7,949,925

(30,213,195)
(27,442,309)
(377,073)

5,065,085

A Ann arm

£109 NOT NDH0N

12,728,340
18,309,413
13,237,893
8,487,542
8,604,631
43,916,843
2,690,577
8,796,701

9,903,298
1,937,709

28,942,011
e Azm A

cmsmns nmA

A DN AAN

170,781

(4,049,661)

17 ABr £Aaa
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Non Major Total
Governmental Governmental

- -

$ 76,176,116  § 165,498,438

3,540 5,139

- 77,823
17,551,085 62,962,602
- 11,440,030

281,094 281,094

- 13,853,767

545,691 558,916
11,982,555 30,907,843
- 457,657
8,288,587 8,288,587
538,081 662,503

- 57,644

255,738 916,422
1,157,545 1,323,982
$ 41,143  $ 707,996
2,257,360 4,224,048
741,546 2,315,634
38,879 55,981
49,051 594,239
1,266,753 1,266,753
13,250 13,250
5,543 5,543
32,353 32,353
16,986,416 61,002,395
- 13,761,409
2,908,339 5,126,635
74,411,222 127,749,124
- 2,680,105

e e - Ann FeA Aan
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Butler County, Ohio
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to
Net Position of Governmental Activities

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the
statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in gove tal activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the funds. These assets consist of:
Land 17,344,637
Infrastructure 247,443,684
Construction in progress 2,065,758
Depreciable capital assets 228,386,921
Accumulated depreciation 113 enr nem

Total capital assets

An internal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of
insurance to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal
service fund are included in governmental activities in the statement of
net position.

Some of the County's revenues will be collected after year end,
but are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures
and therefore are deferred in the funds:

Delinquent Property Taxes 1,960,207
Delinquent Revenue in Lieu of Taxes 92,358
Sales Taxes 7,902,407
Special Assessments 8,288,587
Due From Other Gove nts 21,151,056
Charges for ces 1,856,438
Interest Revenue 310,269
Other fonann

Total

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent deferred charges on refundings
which do not provide current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent deferred gains on refundings
which do not provide current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the funds.

The net pension liability is not due and payable in the current period;
>fore, the liability and related deferred inflows/outflows are not
reported in governmental funds:

Deferred Outflows - Pension 41,544,099
Deferred Intflows - Pension (2,109,215)
Net Pension Liability conmonm

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore
are not reported in the funds. Those liabilities consist of:

Accrued interest on bonds (686,302)
Bonds (50,403,457)
Loans (1,403,456)
Lo Term Contracts Payable (27,067,793)
Compensated absences cenr e

Total

Net Position of Governmental Activities
See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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$162,815,240

371,437,913

2,404,071

41,849,359

587,435

(95,308)

(68,992,082)
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Butler County, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds

Job and Family Residential Incentive
Districts and Tax

Reve

Property Taxes $ 12747268 § 18338988 § 13,257,609  § -
Sales Taxes 43,896,978 - - -
Other Local Taxes - - - -
Charges for Services 20,390,770 31,327 - -
Li s and Permits 2,755,788 - - -
Fines and Forfeitures 1,131,888 - - -
Intergovernmental 11,049,480 9,499,830 26,726,731 4,964,008
Special Assessments - - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - 8,799,306
Investment Earnings 1,331,154 - - -
Other ot nonT Tom e

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Gowv nt:
Legislative and Executive 20,303,942 - - -
Legislative and Executive - Intergovernmental - - - 9,140,959
Judicial 12,610,364 - - -
Public Safety 36,878,262 - - -
Public Works 191,763 - - -
Health 581,880 28,227,781 - -
Human Services 1,763,032 - 36,287,430 -
Conservation and Recreation 383,970 - - -
Capital Outlay - - : - -
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 743 - 7,649 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges oo
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures Tt e reas Sorr e fonnnes

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Transfers - In 1,250,000 - 804,003 -
Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance 11,874,175 (351,650) 4,665,161 3,086,033

Fund Balances at Beginn ~ f Year

Fund Balances at End of Year Co S s men e - ~remaea - v ama Am

See accompanying notes to the ncial statements
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Non Major
Governmental

$ 17,119,775
2,690,577
21,720,436
1,042,300
761,883
34,135,314
2,144,839

530,669

ANEA ama

5,514,344
2,087,225
12,567,660
21,686,313
12,691,568
22,608,743
33,839
211,050

5,875,019

5,556,067

Total
Governmental

—_.a

61,463,640
43,896,978
2,690,577
42,142,533
3,798,088
1,893,771
86,375,363
2,144,839
8,799,306
1,861,823

1 rrn om0

25,818,286
9,140,959
14,697,589
49,445,922
21,878,076
41,501,229
60,659,205
417,809
211,050

5,883,411

-~ sy

24,829,786

1 A n1e AAN
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Butler County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

General Fund

L oI E S AT I N v

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Ht Services

Conservation and Recreation

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Exy

Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Other Financing Sources
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Transfers - In

Transfers - Out

A1 Aansr

ires

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Balance at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.

Original

"o

12,679.500
42.367.000
18,356,103
2,270,050
1,243,300
10,054,775
1,300,000

23,927.777
13,217,807
37,781,760
205,154
739.328
1,919,677
444216

831

-=

1n 10 a1y

2,742,466

500.000
(450,000)

1,100,000

(1,002)

27,292,666

1 Aann nns

27

Final

-~

12,679.500
42.367.000
18.306,003
2.270.050
1,243,300
10,605.239
1,300,000

26,049,090
13,409,158
40,657,551
205,154
771,961
2.023,719
444,216

831

-=

7 1An D1

2,732,466

500.000
(450.000)

1,100.000

(2.785,164)

27.292,666

1 AnNA oA

12,773.674
43,889,639
19,740,189
2,755,788
1.142.454
10,682,962
2,049,476

24,711,023
12,700.550
39,424,527
201.258
770,711
1.915.689
811

831

e de]

1n M AnA

3.233.845

17,490
(339.405)

1.250.000

7.429.070

27.292,666

T Ann oAy

Variance
Positive

94,174
1,522,639
1,434,186

485,738
(100.846)

77.723

749.476

1.338.067
708.608
1.233.024
3.896
1.250
108,030
2.405

- ran A0

501.379
(482.510)
110,595
150.000



Butler County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Developmental Disabilities Fund

Original
Revenues:

Property Taxes $ 18,000,000

Charges for Services 20.500

Intergovernmental 7,629,380

Other
Total Revenues
Exp  ires:

Current:

Health ansen onm
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures (4,557,017)
Other Financing Sources:

Other Financing Sources n
Net Change in Fund Balance (4.493,017)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 31,956.335
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated e

Fund Balance at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

28

Final

18.000.000
20.500
8.573.380

A1 AnA Ama

(4.486.491)

(4.422.491)

31,956,335

rms nAa

18,378,894
31,327
9.343.872

mAn anm e .

(1.642,786)

(1.587.078)

31,956,335

Fms o nmA

Variance
Positive

378.894
10,827
770,492

2,843,705

2.835413



Butler C v, Ohio
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)

Job and ©  ly Services/Children Services Agency Fund
Revenues:
Property Taxes $
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Human Services
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources
Transfers - In
Total Other Financing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements

13,000,000
25,493,489

Nn=rc Ens

46,398,786

8,600

ann

3,992,517

N0 714

(2,147,465)

5.560,443

1 Ara AnA

29

13,000,000
25,896,130

s ron

47,360,750

8,339

nnn

847.324

A0 1A

(6.254,151)

5,560,443

1 ArA Anm

13,285.360
24,794,055

1mA mAn

41,943,242

8,339

onn

1,088.100
(1,808.166)

5.560,443

D

Variance
Positive

AWNT Lt v

285,360
(1,102,075)

PRV VAP VAN

5,417,508

An

240,776

~ Ann

4,445,985



Butler County, Ohio

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

(" gesinFund | es - Budget and Actual (Budget Basis)
Residential Incentive Districts and Tax Incremental Financings Fund

Variance
Original Final Positive
Revenues:
Intergovernmental ) - $ -8 2375099 $ 2.375,099
Payments in Lieu of Taxes Tonr e Toanment T T
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

Inl meenta] £ 10" AN~ ) _|n Aar s N N mAA AN A am s e
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 1.568.884 (2,977,031) 1,652,021 4.629.052
Other Financing Sources (Uses):

Qther Financing Sources - - 2,591.869 2,591,869
Transfers - Out o
Total Other — ing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance (20,000) (4.677,377) 2,707,568 7.384.945
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year o onnnre omennn coonnnen

Fund Balance at End of Year

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Butler County
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds

Governmental
Activities -
Internal
Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Income
h Provided by Operating Activities:
uperating Income (Loss) crotTTe m e mnr e - s
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Prov
De) 10,242,202 7.825.624 18.067.826 -
Other Non-Uperating Kevenues 114,302 264.033 378.335 356.027
(increase)
Accounts receivavic (319.217) (199.630) (518.847) -
Prepaid Items - - (1.163.263)
Deferred Outflows Pension 388.085 155.235 543.320
Increase(Decrease) in Liabili
Accounts Payable (148,862) (48.213) (197.075) -
Contracts Payable (2.493.069) (49.935) (2.543,004) -
Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable (142.137) (61.922) (204.059) (11.605)
Compensated Absences Payable (146.609) 124.043 (22.566) 16
Due to Other Funds 6 4 10 -
Due to Other Gover ts 6.779 57.014 63,793 -
Deferred Inflows Pension (69.390) (27.757) (97.147)
Net Pension Liability (131.981) (52.791) (184.772)
Claims Payable
Total Adjustments Toannoen Tontone TTonmor om e
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
Non-Cash capital and related financing activities:
Capital Contributions from Customers of $352.167 for the Sewer Fund
Capital Contributions from Customers of $336.156 for the Water Fund
Capital Contributions increased $664.957 in the 1 Fund due to an increase in receivables for the Williamsdale Sewer project

Developers during the year donated $1,975,908 of sewer lines to the Sewer fund.
The County transferred $861.452 in assets from the Sewer fund to the Water fund.

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements
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Butler County, Ohio
Statement of Fiduciary Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents in Si ted Accounts

Property Taxes Receivable

Revenue in Lieu of Taxes Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable

I from Other Governments

Total Assets

Liabilities

Undistributed Monies

Deposits Held and Due to Others
Due to Other Gov nts

B Payable

Total Liabilities

See accompanying notes to the basic financial statements.
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TAtal

26,213,150
6,193,478
445,644,919
96,402,915
10,568,495

Q TLO 0NT

16,751,658
275,211
576,641,492

174 AN

{072 70" 7%1
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Long-Term Loans

2005 4.19% $4,634,892
Cincinnati Waterworks

2006 0.00% $700,871
OPWC Cast lron Watermain

2006 0.00% $874,581
OPWC Watermain improvements

2009 0.00% $470,318
OPWC ! tliron Watermain

2009 3.52% $3,158,694
OWDA Polybutylene Water Line

2009 3.42% $849,987
OWDA Shaker Creek Sewer

2009 3.42% $1,153,728
OWDA Big Monroe ! ‘er

2009 2.65% $1,587,221 (ARRA)
OWDA Lesourdsville Sewer

2010 0.00% $2,466,203 (ARRA)
OWDA Liberty-Fair 1 Water Tank

2010 0.00% $510,468
OPWC Sharon Creek Sewer

2010 0.00% $600,000
OPWTC Cast Iron Watermain

2011 3.71% $35,500,000
OWDA Lesoursville Phase 2

$

2,757,509 $

473,085

546,613

391,933

2,626,691

652,336

886,709

80,488

1,062,895

433,896

530,000

17,496,035

76

$

250364 §

35,044

43,729

15,678

130,002

37,031

50,264

4,771

70,860

17,016

20,000

672,612

2,507,145 $

438,041

502,884

376,255

2,496,689

615,305

83¢ i

75,717

992,035

416,880

510,000

16,823,423

241,394

35,044

43,729

15,678

134,619

38,308

51,999

4,899

70,859

17,016

20,000

697,797
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Butler County, Ohio
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of the County's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Plan

Last Three Years (1)

County's Proportion of the Net Pension
Liability

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability

Cc  y's Covered Payroll

County's Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability as a Percentage

of its Covered Payroll

Plan Fidu =~ / Net Position as a
Percent :of the Total Pension
Liability

(1) ™ ~ rmation prior to 2013 is not available.

IN1L

0.67466323%

$116,860,173

$79,521,898

146.95%

81.08%

Amounts presented for each year were determined as of the County's

measurern  t date which is the prior year end

102

MmN

0.67328450%

$81,205,636

$79,995,262

101.51%

86.45%

MNI1A

0.67328450%

$79,371,471

$80,024,500

99.18%

86.36%



Butler County, Ohio

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of County Contributions

Ohio Public Employees Retirement System - Traditional Plan
Last Four Years (1)

a1k
Contractually Required Contribution $10,425,715
Contributions in Relation to the

Contractually Required Contribution N ane ey
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) en

County Covered Payroll $83,513,607

Contributions as a Percentage of

Covered Payroll 12.48%

(1) Information prior to 2013 is not available.

103

laT2) K

$9,878,226

I nma AA AN

$79,521,898

12.42%

ANT A

$9,955,602

P L L.

&n

$79,995,262

12.45%

MmN

$10,783,088

o 70’2 naoon

mn

$80,024,500

13.47%
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Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
In Segregated Accounts
Receivables:
Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Accounts
Due from Other Governments
Special Assessments
Loans
rom Other Funds
Prepad Items
Materials and Supplies Inventory

Total Assets

Liabilities

Ac *ayable

Cc¢ ayable

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Governments
Advances from Other Funds
Matured Bonds Payable
Matured Interest Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes not Levied to Finance the Current
Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

Non-major
Special Revenue

73,670,858
3,540

17,551,085
281,094

0

545,691
11,651,623
1,461,485
538,081

0

255,738

41,143
2,257,360
561,730
38,879
49,051
1,189,712

16,986,416

1,951,364
72,942,679

VLWL

$

Non-major
Capital Projects

307,383

330,932

179,816

58,136

32,353

265,341

107

Non-major
Bond Retirement

1,150,242

6,827,102

1,112,544

Non-major
Permanent

1,047,633

956,975
90,658

Total Non-major
Governmental

76,176,116
3,540

17,551,085
281,094
545,691

11,982,555

8,288,587
538,081

255,738

41,143
2,437,176
561,730
38,879
49,051
1,266,753
13,250
5,543
32,353

16,986,416

2,908,339
74,411,222



Butler County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet
Non-major Special Revenue Funds

_.m™4 Ansr

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
In Segregated Accounts

Receivables:
Property Taxes

Other Local Taxes

Accounts

Due from Other Governments
Special Assessments

Loans
Prepaid Items

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Contracts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Governments
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes not Levied to Finance the Current
Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted

Unassigned (Deficit)
Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

Mental Health and
Addiction Recovery

All Other
Legislative and

$ 3,021,828

2,400

192,042
6,038

111,805

$ 2,425

19,190
40,101
1,079

133,177
3,159,513

All Other

4,847.215

34,819
25

45,817

2,687
40,921
27,944

1,200

52,058
4,793,719

All Other

5,028,166

290

25,768
2,283,143

19,398

9,209
74,313
153,364
1,654
16,424

70,263
5,349,821



Motor

12,799,049

150

281,094
105,466
4,756,826

13,717

18,028
213,087
100,785

475
3,688

1,059,493
13,498,077

All Other

13,673,317

100

33,164
1,445,819
1,461,485

538,081
8,660

1,681
193,594
19,737
12

552,944
13,380,583

$

Child Support
o .

2,233,884

200

602,395

4,730

312
7,266
62,960
10,927

9,588
2,503,944

$

County Care
S

312436 %

400

154,432
92,857

3,669

794 %

93,095
88,398
24,732
19,697

A AAA

16,161

PFWRIPVAN

,—— AAr -~

109

Elderly

12,212,140

8,804,618

570,110

50

1,573,142
2,885

8,542,450

50
10,636,113

A ,Par A0

(Continued)



Butler County, Ohio
Combhining Balance Sheet
Non-major Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

L ..M Antr

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents:
In Segregated Accounts
Receivables:
Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Accounts
Due from Other Governments
Special Assessments
Loans
Prepaid Items
Materials and Supplies Inventory
Total Assets

Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Contracts Payable

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Due to Other Funds

Due to Other Governments
Advances from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Property Taxes not Levied to Finance the Current
Year Operations

Unavailable Revenue

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances
Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances(Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

All Other
Human

a

80,626

All Other
Conservation

1

$

110

40,736

40,736

Total
Non- r
Special kevenue

- .

$ 73,670,858
3,540

17,551,085
281,094
545,691

11,651,623

1,461,485
538,081
255.738

$ 41,143
2,257,360
561,730

38,879

16,986,416

1,951,364
72,942,679

sarn PAaN



Butler County, Ohio
Combining Balance Sheet

nnnnn

Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Due from Other Gover ts

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Accured Wages and Benefits Payable
Advances from Other Funds
Accrued Interest Payable
Notes Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Restricted

Unassigned (Deficit)

Total Fund Balances (Deficit)

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances

$

265,341

265,341

N2z 24]

$

Other Capital

111

- nnn

58,136

T I W2

Road

4,091

AnmT ANA

8,675

A mam Ann

A AT reAN

Total
Buildings Non-major
Construction Capital Projects

$ 37,951 $ 307,383
$ 179,816 $ 179,816
- 58,136

23,678 32,353

- 265,341

(M ras AR oA AN
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Butler € v, Ohio
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances
Non-major Special Revenue Funds
e L amas

Mental Health and All Other

Addiction Recovery Estate Legislative and All Other All Other
Revenues -
Property Taxes $ 8,502,329 3 - 8 - 3 - 8 -
Other Local Taxes - - - -
Charges for Services 54,871 2,232,699 4,142,384 2,516,780 6,193,683
Licenses and Permits - - - - 867,801
Fines and Forfeitures - - 523,732 39,483 39,133
Intergovernmental 4,924 897 - - 1,593 4,194,625
Special ssments - - - - -
Payments 1n Lieu of Taxes - - - -
Investment Earnings - - 5,082 10 -
Ooter e oo o
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive - 2,199,948 3,314,396 -
Judicial - - - 2,087,225 -
Public Safety - - - - 12,567,660
Public Works -
Health 12,686,537 - - - R
Human Services - - - R -
Conservation and Re: n - - - . .
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

nma mam- An e 4« Ama4 N0 amn ren tmrs 004

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers - In 110,000 - - - 58,324
Transfers - Out coTm o

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net'™ e in Fund Balance 964,797 32,751 124,984 470,679 (698,560)
Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year - oo 4,375 nae 2110 ca4
Fund Balances (Deficit) at End of Year . 847 === é P
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Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Motor All Other Child Support County Care Elderly
Vehicle Public Works Enforcement Facility Services Levy
Revenues
Property Taxes $ - 3 - 3 - 3 &= 9 8,617,446
Other Local Taxes 2,690,577 - - - -
Charges for Services 482,527 877,976 1,280,602 3,898,178 -
Licenses and Permits 174,109 390 = 5 5
Fines and Forfeitures 159,535 - - - -
Intergovernmental 12,870,776 2,254,170 2,810,233 1,976,705 1,271,383
Special Assessments - 1,387,329 - - -
Payments in Lieu of Taxes - - - - -
Investment Eamings 15,922 3,202 - - =
Other 255,585 96,416 - - -
Total Revenues 16,649,031 4,619,483 4,090,835 5,874,883 9,888,829
Expenditures
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive - - - - -
Judicial - - - - -
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works 14,419,076 4,115,625 - - =
Health - - - - .
Human Services - - 4,523,194 6,642,555 11,107,867
Conservation and Recreation - - - - -
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 124,288 - - 3,217 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - 2,609 -
Total Expenditures 14,543,364 4,115,625 4,523,194 6,648,381 11,107,867
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 2,105,667 503,858 (432,359) (773,498) (1,219,038)
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers - In - - - - -
Transfers - Out - - - - -
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - - - -
Net Change in Fund Balance 2,105,667 503,858 (432,359) (773,498) (1,219,038)
Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year 12,451,903 13,429,669 2,945,891 347,692 11,855,201
Fund Balances (Deficit) at End of Year $ 14,557,570 $§ 13,933,527 § 2,513,532 $ (425,806) $ 10,636,163
(Continued)
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Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and " esin Fund Balances

Non-major Special Revenue Funds (Continued)

Revenues

Property Taxes
Other Local Taxes
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Investment Earnings
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current:

General Govemment
Legislative and Executive
Judicial

Public Safety

Public Works

Health

Human Services

Conservation and Recreation

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditues

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financi  3ources (Uses)

Transfers - In

Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Fund Balances (Deficit) at End of Year

All Other
Human

~

257,850

s oara

335,127

76,992

5,777

RT -V N

115

All Other
Conservation

i

40,736

6,897

an nan

an mar

Non-major
Special Revenue

$ 17,119,775
2,690,577
21,720,436
1,042,300

761,883
30,562,232
1,387,329

24,216

Ars Ara

5,514,344
2,087,225
12,567,660
18,534,701
12,686,537
22,608,743
33,839

127,505

245,316

1,091,955

~A AaA Fem
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Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Non-major Capital Projects Funds

Revenues
Int¢ 1ental

Expenditures
Current:
Public Works
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Tran -In

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances (Deficit) at Beginni

Fund Balances (Deficit) at End of Year

36,066

(41,524)

1,247,015

Other Capital

116

58,136

(58,136)

(58,136)

Buildings
Road Construction
rovet _

3,151,612 -
116,848 .
276,953 (81,620)
365,372 2,867,797

)

Total
Non-major
Capital Projects

3,151,612
211,050

95,673

1 Ams Ame

4 )48
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Butler County, Ohio
Combining Statement of Fund Net Position

Assets

Current Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents with Fiscal Agent
Prepaid Items

Total Assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accrued Wages and Benefits Payable
Claims Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities

Claims Payable

Compensated Absences Payable
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Total Net Position

Health

2,068,633

Anrn rra

896

ann

T mar

A nna
A Anna
4 ~mn

A nra amna

118

lles

Workers'

2,566,978

~AmAn mAa

4,245
671,215

o san
ran nan
2,000,921
A1 san
A ann r1a
A mnroeee

1 nAa v

Jefferson

267,893

Armann

745,843

mar 0an

206,020

Ans nan
ner ora

sran amns

$

4,635,611
267,893

s nrm oA

5,141
1,417,058

PR
1 ana £ma
2,206,941

nN4s Oa
At sar
asrnnr

A and nAs



Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Internal Service Funds

.M WL W 3. AWM. L__ A1 Anar

Operating Revenues
" es for Services
Other Operating Revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personal Services
Contractual Services
Claims and Ju  1ents
Materials and >upplies
Other

Total Operating Exg 5
(0] ncome (Loss)

Non-Operating Revenues
Other Non-Operating Revenues

Change in Net Position
Net Position(Deficit) at Beginning of Year

Net Position (Deficit) a of Year

Health

17,280,453

302,150
16,989,210

28,043

san fnos

97,174

* nrr ran

119

$

~

Workers'
2,174,814
,856

841,631
843,079

Nt Arm

310,322

A nam

$

Jefferson

L SRR PR N

2,296,698

443,665
2,216,908

semA Aanns

(172,390)

21,751,965

532,006
18,274,506
3,059,987
28,043

rema A

235,106
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Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds
For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

Undivided Tax Fund

Assets

Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Property Taxes Receivable

Revenue in Lieu of Taxes Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable

Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

Liabilities
Due to Other Governments

Total Liabilities

All Other Agency Funds
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents
In Segregated Accounts
Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

Liabilities

Undistributed Monies

Deposits Held and Due to Others
Due to Other Governments
Loans Payable

Total Liabilities

Beginning Ending
Balance Balance
12/31/15 Additions Deductions 12/31/16

17,233,419 500,874,487 502,858,212 15,249,694
435,824,257 445,644,919 435,824,257 445,644,919
91,325,604 50,520,087 45,442,776 96,402,915
10,014,569 10,016,081 9,462,155 10,568,495
841,113 - 841,113 -
555,238,962 1,007,055,574 994,428,513 567,866,023
555,238,962 507,908,706 495,281,645 567,866,023
555,238,962 507,908,706 495,281,645 567,866,023
11,727,890 38,922,273 39,686,707 10,963,456
6,527,734 334,256 6,193,478
8,495,881 8,777,309 8,503,363 8,769,827
26,751,505 47,699,582 48,524,326 25,926,761
17,903,790 - 1,152,132 16,751,658
266,929 131,097 122,815 275,211
8,498,881 8,649,654 8,373,066 8,775,469
81,905 50,000 7,482 124,423
26,751,505 8,830,751 9,655,495 25,926,761
(Continued)
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Butler County, Ohio

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities

All Agency Funds

Total - All Agency Funds
Assets
Equity in Pooled Cash and ¢ 1 Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents
In Segr  ed Accounts
Property 1axes Receivable
Revenue in Lieu of Taxes Receivable
Special Assessments Receivable
Due from Other Governments

Total Assets

Liabilities

Undistributed Monies

Deposits Held and Due to Others
Due to Other Governments
Loans Payable

Total Liabilities

B "aning
Balance

28,961,309

6,527,734
435,824,257
91,325,604
10,014,569

17,903,790
266,929
563,737,843

ns Ane

124

539,796,760

1,644,919
50,520,087
10,016,081

A A oAnn

131,097
516,558,360

XaWatatal

4 mAn arm

542,544,919

334,256
435,824,257
45,442,776
9,462,155

N NAA AR

4 ANA Amm AAN

1,152,132
122,815
503,654,711

T A0N

ENANST 1AN

Ending
Balance

1AM

26,213,150

6,193,478
4,644,919
96,402,915
10,568,495

O TL£O O

AA mAA 1O 4

16,751,658
275,211
576,641,492

174 AN

g0 TN 7704



Butler County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
General Fund
Budget Basis

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Sales Taxes
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Infc “on Services

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Total Information Services

Audit Services
Contractual Services

Auditor
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Auditor

Commissioners
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total C " ioners

Department of Development
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total Department of Development

Mailroom
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Mailroom

Original

12,679,500
42,367.000
18,356,103
2,270,050
1,243,300
10,054,775
1,300,000

anm ATr

1,961,885
65,000
751,000

190 ann

1,109,014
30,000

1,100,796
16,900
27,500

ran

1,219,215
20,150
211,800

95,268
541,799

1An

125

Final

12,679,500
42,367,000
18,306,003
2,270,050
1,243,300
10,605.239
1,300,000

1,822,399
980,840
738,733

A maa

10 Ann

1,109,014
33,567

1,099.668
25,079
86,383

£an

1,219,215
29.582
219,376

95,759
542560

inn

12,773.674
43,889.639
19.740.189
2,755,788
1.142.454
10,682,962
2,049.476

1,683,934
968.770
734,789

Al Aan

TV RN

1,073,935
19,373

993,670
18,078
79,701

1,149,360
28461
201.600

s

95,632
542 444

Tan

Variance
Positive

94,174
1,522,639
1,434,186

485,738
(100,846)

77,723

749,476

138,465
12,070
3,944

4 nan

35.079
14,194

105,998
7.001
6,682

ean

69,855
1.121
17,776

127
116

(continued)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
General Fund (continued)

Budget Basis

Maintenance
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Total Maintenance

Records Center
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Records Center

Insurance, Pension and Taxes
Contractual Services
Other
Total Insurance, Pension and Taxes

Commissioners-Other
Contractual Services
Other
Total Commissioners-Other

Central HR
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Central HR

Board of Elections
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Board of Elections

Prosecuting Attorney
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total Prosecuting Attorney

CSEA Prosecutor
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total CSEA Prosecutor

Pre-trial Diversion
Personal Services
Other
Total CSEA Prosecutor

[

[

Final

259.679
152413
2,359,682

Aar ncn

279.465
4.289

972.109

454.659

329.662
2,003

Fnana

3,328,510
306.849

Arn onm

3.709,031
44419
87,180

.o

248,928
4810

37.466

247,599
150419
2,353,966

Aaa non

278.364
4.207

824,560

426.747

327.367
2,003

A ana

2,974.844
257210

Ane reoe

3,707.278
44.098
82.833

248.570
3.993

37.207

Variance

Positive

12,080
1.994
5716

1 Ama

1,101
82

147,549

27.912

353,666
49.639

IR RTN

1,753
321
4347

358
817

259

(continued)
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Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund B: e-Budget and Actual
General Fund (continued)

Budget Basis

Variance
Original Final Positive
- - o N

Court Services
Personal Services ) sronne “ sroonne © araenn i "o

Domestic Relations Court
Personal Services 1,418,604 1,414,604 1,341,018 73,586
Mate ~ d Supplies 14,690 15,690 15,678 12
Cont Services 126,639 130,642 114,968 15,674
Other con ann nn
Total Domestic Relations Court

Parenting Education
Contractual Services —ttttmoo o mmenm o e

Juvenile Court
Personal Services 2.,408.594 2,418.594 2.400.758 17,836
Materials and Supplies 42.500 75,028 65,520 9,508
Contractual Services 1,645,888 1.671.497 1.518,507 152,990
Other on e n
Total Juvenile Court

Probate Court
Personal Services 865.110 865,110 841,282 23,828
Materials and Supplies 18.130 16,480 15,594 886
Contractual Services
Total Probate Court

Court of Appeals
Materials and Supplies 563.043 586.515 524.244 62,271
Contrac Services 300 300 - 300
Other PORIGION e aan mn Ao ~nen

Total Court of Appeals

Municipal Courts
Personal Services 424490 451,254 451,254 -
Contractual Services noonnn nonnn Mo e
Total Municipal Courts

Total General Government:
Judicial

Public Safety
Adult Probation
Personal Services 1,774,551 1,762,051 1,747,422 14,629
Mat¢ = and Supplies 7,500 23,000 21,782 1.218
Contractual Services Teroen rennne renonn
Total Adult Probation

Coroner
Personal Services 622913 615413 604,253 11,160
Materials and Supplies 9.000 6,759 6,680 79

RN VON nnae A 100

Contractual Services
Total Coroner

(continued)
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Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Cha sin Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
General Fund (continued)

Budget Basis

o wr - e o . Ae aner

Coroner's Morgue
Matenrials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Coroner's Morgue

Juvenile Facilities
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Total Juvenile Facilities

Sheriff's Academy
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Sheriff's Academy

Sheriff's Resolutions
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Total Sheriff's Resolutions

Sheniff
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contras Services
Capital Outlay
Other
Total Sheriff

Paramedics
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total Paramedics

General Communications Sales Tax
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total General Communications Sales Tax

E911 Dispatch
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total E911 Dispatch

Total Public Safety i

Original

o

25.000

aro rnn

2.022,572
143,400
123,300

10,325

1N Anm

427.000
595.000
2.278.000

20,320.373
633.206
601,204

AnA A

1,064,554
369,752
290,000

A Ann

563.633
138.639
2.214.717

s onn

2,478,542
46.060
240.650

AT A0 Asn

129

Final

~ 1

25.120

AnT nvA

1,987.972
187,261
133,595

N1 oaan

11,200

~n amm

427,000
614,989
2,547,511

117 190

20,879,522
709.358
738,455
406,515

EERERE. 78

1,069,801
390,758
285,043

4 nnn

563.633
151,519
2245312

s onn

2,700,746
63.554
241,559

an rem oEEn

25.120

Anm nA

1,881,654
181,728
119,756

AAA 41N

11,200

AN Aar

372,102
614,989
25427763

119 190

20,763.655
709.254
737,233
406,515

EERERT N

957.933
390,758
283.949

4 nnan

551.659
151,519
2244473

s onn

2,619,304
63,554
239819

AN An4 £Am

Vanance
Positive

106,318
5.533
13.839

sna nan

54,898

4,748

115,867
104
1,222

111.868

1.094

11,974

839

81.442

1,740

1A% AAa

(continued)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
General Fund (continued)

Budget Basis

- a2 am . s aner

Public Works
Solid Waste Landfill
Contractual Services

Engineers-Plat Room
Personal Services

Total Public Works

Health
Other-Health
Contractual Services

Rey tion Vital Statistics
Other

Total Health

Hi Services
Veterans Memorial
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Veterans Memorial

Veterans Services
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Veterans Services

Total Human Services

Conservation and Recreation
Agricultural
Contractual Services
Other
Total Agricultural

Emergency Management
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other
Total Emergency Management

Total Conservation and Recreation

Original

13,500

738,078

710 310

4,500

1N nan

814,877
29,700

v nrnornn

T nan s

3,000

£n onnn

130

Final

13,500

770,711

271 nc

4,500

tn ann

814,877
47,029

114791

A AnA =

4638

Ans FAa

2,400
600

ra nnn

13,500

107 7o

Ana Arn

770,711

a7A 11

2,155

noaan

742,593
43.613

117 oom

1 AvF ron

4.638

Ans rAa

595

£n nnn

A4t 011

Variance
Positive

" ons

A nns

1Aaen

2,345

ren

72.284
3416

AN ans

1h6 AnA

2,400

A anr

(continued)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
General Fund (continued)

Budget Basis

v wr - 1 oan . a1 Anar

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Debt Service

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Other Finan¢ sources
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Transfers - In
Transfers - Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

831

T

1incinrc

2,742,466

500,000
(450,000)

1,100,000

(1,002)

27,292,666

t Ann oA

131

Final

831

AA Fra .

s 1An 01T

2,732,466

500.000
(450,000)

1,100,000

(2.785.164)

27.292,666

1 Ann oA

17 ra Ann

3.233,845
17,490
(339,405)

1,250,000

7,429.070

27,292,666

1 Ann oA

Variance
Positive

T raAn £

501.379
(482.510)
110,595
150.000

10,214,234



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Developmental Disabilities-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

| pNUDUTREE SARE A TN f ~4 mnas

Onginal
Revenues:
Property Taxes 3 18.000,000 $
Charges for Services 20.500
Intergovernmental 7.629,380
Other pemonen
Total Revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Health
Developmental Disabilities
Personal Services 14,444,778
Materials and Supplies 395,700
Contractual Services 15,348,919
Capital Outlay 310,000
Other roeonn
Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures (4,557,017
Other Finan sources :
Other Financing Sources “A4.nnn
Net Change in Fund | e (4,493,017)
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year 31,956,335

EEVA TN

Prior Year Encuinbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

132

Final

18,000,000 h)
20.500
8,573,380

14,447,010
407,582
15,813,866
260,150

2,4 msa

(4,486.491)

LA f\f\l’)

(4,422,491)

31,956,335

Fms oAl

18.378.894
31,327
9,343,872

rans

13,338.095
338,482
15,491,155
109,936

AR vAm

(1,642,786)

rroman
)

(1,587,078)

31,956.335

Fmr onma

Variance
Positive

378,894
10,827
770,492

1,108,915
69,100
322,711
150,214

B

2,843,705

{Q 20

2,835413
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Butler County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Revenues:
Intt  vernmental
Payments in Lieu of Taxes
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Intergove ntal
Contra Services

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Other Financing Sources
Transfers - Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance atBe =~ =~ of Year
Fund Balance at End o1 Y ear

1.568.884

(20,000)

0 oman Aca

134

Final

(2.977,031)

(4,677.377)

$

2,375,099

1,652,021

2,591,869

2,707.568

$

Variance
Positive

P2

2.375,099

4,629,052

2,591,869

7,384,945



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and
Ch: s in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Sewer-enterprise Fund
Budget Basis

L pEEDUIE § 28 - oan

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Contributed Capital
Special Assessments
Interest Income
Other Non-Operating Revenues
Other Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenses:
Personal Services
Matc ~ ~ and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenses

Net Change in Fund Equity

Fund Equity at Beginning of Year
Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Equity at End of Year

Original

18,653,305
3,763,043
60,000
2,400
49,000

At o e

5,594,038
1,832,244
4,157,999

862,595
4,354,451

4,388,862
(417,560)

30,852,068

4 1nn 1

135

Final

18,653,305
4,046,269
60,000
2,400
49,000

5,630,633
1,794,698
5,076,045

723,035
8,018,910

4,388,862
(4,576,328)

30,852,068

18.880.305
5,646,909
61.248
270
114,302

5,610,663
1.663.351
4,979,962

677,181
7,593.327

4,385,987
(1,719.275)

30,852.068

Variance
Positive

227.000
1,600,640
1,248
(2,130)
65.302

19,970
131347
96,083
45854
425,583

2,857,053



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual

Water-Enterprise Fund
Budget Basis

L AP ¥ o o . e anaer

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Contributed Capital
Special Assessments
Other Non-Operating Revenues
Other Operating Revenues
Proceeds from Loans

Total Revenues

Expenses:
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Expenses

Net Change in Fund Equity

Fund Equity at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated

Fund Equity at End of Year

Original

20.362,103
1,659,800
70,150
34,030

2,502,043
648,907
10,215,088
541,940
2,556,336

4,592,039
(224,702)

14,667,938

1 7100 Ana

136

Final

| AP Y

20,362,103
2,024.891
70,150
34,030

2,523,543
603,756
11,323,084
521,155
3,571,359

4,610,898
(2,158,884)

14,667,938

1 man A

21,393,913
3. 177
56.214
264,033
12,763

2,509,385
528,524
11,240,569
443,666
2,721,591

4,600,494

1,669,956

14,667,938

Variance
Positive

1.031.810
1,497.486
56.214
193,883
(21.267)

14,158
75.232
82,515
77,489
849,768

10,404

3,828,840



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Mental Healtl Addiction Recovery Services Board-Special Revenue Fund

Budget Basis

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Charges for Services
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Health
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources
Transfers - In
Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

9,509,800
117.712
3,887.062

1,332,320
28,385
15,390,503

250,000

(2.881,184)

14912236

rn Ann

137

‘inal
£g,-p

9.509,300
117,712
3.907.562

1,269.057
52,090
15,505,369

250,000
(2.933.292)

14,912.236

£nt ana

8,520,328
78.208
5.371.801

1,211.633
19,713
12,970.956

207,148
144,404

14912236

Fea onAnn

Vanance
Positive

~r

(989.472)
(39,504)
1,464,239

57.424
32,377
2,534,413

(42,352)

3,077,696



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Real Estate Assessment-Special Revenue Fund

Budget Basis

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Govt at:
1L lative and Executive
Keal Estate Assessment
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

2,703,000

12 Ann

2,067,722
88,000
593,000

(30,722)

ron

(30.222)

3,079.014

i1 rFAa

138

Final

2,233,000

2,067,722
110.655
569,675

(545,052)

Fon

(544,552)

3,079.014

J
[

32,699

1,877,084
67,146
348,490

(82,511)

3,079,014

$

Variance
Positive

(301)

190,638
43,509
221.185

462,531

462,041



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

All Other Legislative and Executive-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

Revenues:
Charges for Services $
Fines and Forfeitures
Interest
Other
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government:
Legislative and Executive
Other Legislative and Executive
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other F ing Uses:
Transfers - Out

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

4,356,750
575,250
4,000

a4 mnn

2,516,260
532,651
806,907

A nan

1,082,882

1 1An Anm

(17,118)

2,859,343

139

4.129.638
532,969
4,000

2,528,441
538.550
882,877

37,000

A 1nn

682,339

71 AEn Anns

(567,661)

2,859,343

4,141,846
523.496
5,082

2,384,294
390,143
761,521

36,000

an

1,116,610

“mennnny

(133,390)

2,859,343

Variance

12,208
(9.473)
1,082

144,147
148,407
121,356

1,000

434271

434271



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
All Other Judicial-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

| ST IR ST R RS . s anar

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expendiures:
Current:
General Government:
Judicial
Other Judicial
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

2,534.060
48,000
1,500

18

1,487,922
199,300
583.819

20,000

167,537

4,332,699

v ran

140

Final
Bu¢-— N

2,515,918 $ 2,522.832
39,800 39,583
1,500 1,593
18 10
1,569,327 1,508,117
306,567 175.743
657.144 517,202
79.967 72,085
(90,769) 288.817
4,332,699 4.332,699

108 ran Ara s an

Variance
Positive

6,914
(217)

93
(8)

61.210
130,824
139,942

7.882

379,586



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund | ce-Budget and Actual
All Other Public Safety-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Fines and Forfeitres
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Safety
Other Public Safety

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Other Financing Sources
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Transfers - In
Total Other Financing Sources(Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund E ¢ at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

4,328,203
77

31,750

5.322,337

11 arm

9,610,909
412,389
1.855.200
30,000

v rre Fras

500,000

A A

(1,091.810)

4,399,408

s rca

141

5,028.203
872225
31,750
5.451.302

v Arm

10,139,637
641,700
2,123,942
211,210

T nar Aane

206.513

(1.665.040)

4,399,408

4,828,023
867,801
39,068
5.083.076

9,730,025
459.628
1,197.698
211,087

206,767

(220.157)

4,399,408

Variance

(200,180)

(4,424)
7,318

(368,226)

409.612
182,072
926,244

123

1,444,883



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Motor Vehicle-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

T AL W W_3_ AT __._5. %% Aansr

Revenues:
Other Local Taxes
Charges for Services
License and Permits
Fines and Forfeitures
Intergovernmental
interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Works
Motor Vehicle

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Public Works

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

-~

2.500.000
261.000
125,500
145,000

11,990.000
10.000

6,354,975
2,017,850
11,468,215
500.000

(5.576.340)

ann nnn

(5,176.340)

9,964.782

rrmoarA

142

Final

- 1

2,500,000
261,000
125,500
145.000

11.990.000

6,363,153
2,053,372
13,777,545
545.000

1A4 AN

~a Ann AmA

(7,974.370)

ann nnn

(7,574.370)

9,964,782

1rm oA

2,688,836
428,686
174,109
160,113
12,870,633
15,922

5.705.607
1.022,282
8,222,939

484,608

1A4 m0n

vl FrA A

1.034.160

1,034,160

9,964,782

T arm oara

Variance
Positive

188.836
167.686
48,609
15,113
880,633
5.922

657.546
1,031,090
5.554,606

60.392

1.

~rAO s ar

9,008,530

1AnN ARG

8,608,530



Butier County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
All Other Public Works-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

o ows P EEES N ae mna -

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Special Assessments
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Public Works
Other Public Works

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Public Works

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

842,345
300
4,922,571
1,540,000
5,400

1am ann

819,392
135,029
7,114,825

ERIR PN

rAnA Anny

143,251

(564,139)

12,804,385

143

Final

842345
300
2,681,513
1,380,000
3.100

1,077,828
281,104
5,789,798
65,277

A minA anns

38,938

(2,171,952)

12,804,385

877.847
390
2.459.665
1,387.329
3.202

993.885
215.736
3,516,032
15.277

At Ann

38,937

128,295

12,804,385

Variance
Positive

$ 35,502
90

(221,848)

7,329

102

83,943
65,368
2,273,766
50,000

2,300,247



Butler County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Child Support Enforcement-Sp¢ Revenue Fund

Budget Basis

LN . PO

Revenues:
Ch: s for Services
Inte  vernmental
Total Kevenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Human Services
Child Support Enforcement

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original
~ ge

1,325,000

A OonY mam

3.664,623
120,130
1,123,686

35,518

10 Aann

53,518

2,313,612

144

Final

1,325,000

A Amt -

3,671,525
118,228
1,189,550

(616.459)

(598.459)

2,313,612

1,305,587

3,524,389
97,717

(249,176)

2,313,612

Variance
Positive

(19.413)

147,136
20,511
355,558

328,429

349,283



Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
County Care Facility-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

et e . PR
arl

Revenues:
Charges for Services
Intergove al
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Human Services
County Care Facility

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Capital Outlay
Other

Total Human Services

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources
Advances - In

Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund Balance at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

5,075,000
2,112,000

4,788,247
1,024,800
980,128

Ana ran

4,374

1 Aann

AN rra

3,000

102,662

645,031

1on Do

145

4,825,000
2,112,000

4,822,041
1,006,788
1,022,860

53,245

LYY IV PN

4216

-

PV I T ¥

3,000

(260.375)

645,031

100 0ot

4,101,387 3
2,034,356

4,801,788
900,341
993,685

53,245

2,443

o

N noan

6.923

(685.061)

645,031

1an nas

Variance

(723,613)
(77,644)

20,253
106,447
29,175

1,773

1rEn sans

(424.686)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Elderly Services Levy-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

ToLaL_n. T a an . A4 mnar

Revenues:
Property Taxes
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Human Services

Eldery Services Levy
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

8.200.000

1 nAn Ann

215,074

1t anF s

(2,511,019)

A Ann

(2,509,019)

1A anm AnA

146

Final

8.200,000

(4,406,894)

(4.404,894)

201,
1,

~

074
000

nnn

PN

8.635,484

159.997
534

(1,781.882)

(1,781,874)

)

Varlance
Positive

P2 DUV

435,484

41,077
466

2,625,012

2,623,020



Butler County, Ohio
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
All Other Human Services-Special Revenue Fund

Budget Basis

| DU S S LR N . ae ane-

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Human Services
Other Hi Services

Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Advances - In
Advances - Out
Transfers - In

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balance
Fund B eatB f Year

Prior Year Encumprances Appropriated
Fund Balance at End of Year

Original

268.957

315,081
4,084
17,136

(51,062)

An o Anm

(8.655)

66,786

147

Final

333,751

358913
35,769
30,390

(108,135)

an o

(65.375)

66,786

253,448

286,846
29,932
13,790

(79,183)

17,291
(11,000)

4,100

66,786

Variance
Positive

(80,303)

72,067
5,837
16,600

28,952

17,291
(11,000)

69.475



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

All Other Conservation and Recreation-Special Revenue Fund
Budget Basis

L xr F* " v ae maas

Original

Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 30.000

Expenditures:
Current:
Conversation and Recreation
Contractual Services

Net Change in Fund Balance -

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year
Fund Balance at End of Year

148

Variance

Final Positive
30,000 $ 40,736 $ 10,736
(3.8339) 6,397 10,736



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Technology-Capital Projects Fund

Budget Basis

Variance
Ornginal Final Positive

- o -

Revenues:

Expenditures:
Ca ° " utlay:
Contractual Services
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,279,000 1,279,000 1.279,000 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges rener ~onn ~otn
Total Debt Service Expenditures
Total Expenditures

s Ann ar Ann A PP

/1 AN 1A s ArA mAan e A m

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Transfer - in

 Ans o~ “ e maa {heo ean s anAs

Net Change in Fund Balance (6,200) (74,798) (37.716) 37,082

Ans mrm marmem mAs mem

Fund Balance at B f Year
Fund Balance at Ena v1 r ear

149



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Other Capital Improvements-Capital Projects
Budget Basis

| ST I N LY . ~e Aanaer

Revenues:
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Capital Outlay:
Other Capital Improvements
Capital Outlay
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources:
Advances - In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at Beginr »f Year
Fund Balance at End of year

Original
Budget

150

Fan Ann

Actual

FAan Ann

fnaas

(441.864)

Variance
Positive
(Negative)

(441,864)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
Road Improvements-Capital Projects Fund
Budget Basis

| AT Y LN . e Ana s

Revenues:
Intergavernmental

Expenditures:

Road Improvements

Public Works
Contractual Services

Capital Outlay
Contractual Services

Debt Service:

Principal Retirement

Interest and Fiscal Charges
Total Debt Service Expenditures

Total Expenditures
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures
Other Financing Sources:
Notes Issued
Transfers - In
Total Other Financing Sources

Net Change in Fund E 2

Fund Balance at B f Year
Fund Balance at Ena o1 v ear

Original

Bt

2,605,736

an 1nn

A sarans

VWA PN L VaN

2,565,111

151

Final

A Ao arn

A, ram

2,595,000

A r1n mAan

2,565,111

16,102

T 348

2,595,000

YW EALLLYE

2,535.000

3,685

Variance
Positive

(30,111

(12,417)



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

Buildings Construction and Renovations-Capital Projects Fund

Budget Basis
Variance
Orniginal Final Positive
Revenues:
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 10,280,157 10,248.000 10,248,000 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges enmon o ono
Total Debt Service
Total Expenditures rhnnn o hann e et
Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures hnnnnr o connn o
Other Financing Sources:
Notes Issued 7,296,887 7,296,887 7.380.000 83.113
Transfers - In A naa ann [RPRRVON PR PPPUAIUN
Total Other :ing Sources
Net Change in Fund Balance - 52.305 806 (51.499)

Fund Balance at Beginning of Year
Fund Balance at End of Year

152



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund B ce-Budget and Actual
Bond Retirement-Debt Service Fund

Budget Basis

| AT O R AL N . ~1 anar

Revenues:
Special Assessments
Other

Total Revenues

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal '~ es
Total Expenditures

Excess of Revenues Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers - In

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at B 1ning of Year
Fund Balance at Ena of Year

Original

1,225.289

5,747,510

Anrm o ama
6 nse Aam

s oAA Anes

(120.000)

153

$

Final

5.810.610

Anra s

0 e Anm

ir aAn nnos

P NP

(181,404)

1,262,161

o

5,747,510

ERE VIS

~ 0o~ 11

cr a0 nans

s s rr oann

36,942

Variance
Positive

36,872

ro

63,100

1AnnTA

108 130

ann arn

PRRE PPN

218.346



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Cha sin Fund Balance-Budge | Actual
Developmental Disabilities Trust-Permanent Fund
Budget Basis

T4l _wr . w2 oawm . ~e mnae s

Revenues:
Interest
Other

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Health
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Total Expenditures

Net e in Fund Balance

Fund Balance at B z of Year
Fund Balance at Ena o1 1 ear

Original

1,300

1A ann

5,000

1 nnn

An Ann

(8,700)

1 04A ran

154

Final

1.300

5,000

1/ Ann

(13,347)

Variance

Positive
1,802 $ 502
169 4,831
(16) 13,331



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and
Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and A«
Health Insurance-Intcrnal Service Fund
Budget Basis

F-—+bt-V-o g am ~1 ans s

Revenues:

Charges for Services

Other Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenses:
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Other

Total Expenses

Net Change in Fund Equity
Fund Equity at Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances Appropriated
Fund Equity at End of Year

Original

™3l .

17,170,000

382,666
10,000
17,074,675

(126,091)

1,971,469

155

Final

L T PO

17,170,000 $ 17,280,453

382,666 315,907
31,105 30.209
17,059,177 17,039.389
(132,346) 31,072
1,971,469 1,971,646

Variance
Positive

110,453

66,759
896
19,788

163,418



Butler County, Ohio

Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Fund Equity-Budget and Actual
Workers' Compensation -Internal Service Fund
Budget Basis

Revenues:

Charges for Services

Other Non-Operating Revenues
Total Revenues

Expenses:
Personal Services
Materials and Supplies
Contractual Services
Claims and Judgments
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Total Expenses

Net Change in Fund Equity
Fund Equity at Beginning of Year

Prior Yea rances Appropnated
Fund Equity at End of Year

Original

2,058.217

1A Am~e

229.279

1,000
907,175
850,000

84,138

3,348,223

10 Ane

156

Final

2058217
92

229.279
1.000
2,178.824
1,204,290

(1.710,982)

3,348,223

1n N

$

2,174 814

227,688
2,053,761
783,754

1rnian

(840,315)

3,348,220

1A Ane

Variance
Positive

116.597

1.591
1.000
125,063
420,536

870.667



Statistical Section
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2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

yurce: Butler County Auditor

66,262,010
63,128,601
75,227,437
87,765,513
80,561,509
73,744,753
67,998,096
61,781,013
56,315,199

50,319,762

Butler County, Ohio
Ratio of General B¢
Last” ‘ears

$ 25458,812,514

21,766,6. 338
22,684,055,666

,034,073,839
21,731,935,930
20,680, 518
20,580, 1,659
20,496,865,112
20,286,502,268

20,506,818,486

180

| Debt Outstanding

Ratio of Net

0.26

0.29

0.33

0.40

0.37

0.36

0.33

0.30

0.28

0.25

Net

185.03

174.98

207.13

238.41

217.73

198.99

183.15

165.12
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Butler County, Ohio
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Years

Per Capita
Total Personal Personal Unemployment
WVane Damalatinea /1) Ter nnsman T nnennn N Thaan /AN
2007 358,116 § 12,760,389,312 $ 35,632 5.1%
2008 360,775 13,219,878,325 36,643 5.9%
2009 363,184 12,903,927,520 35,530 9.4%
2010 368,130 13,391,465,010 36,377 9.3%
2011 369,999 14,358,551,193 38,807 8.6%
2012 370,589 14,945,483,781 40,329 7.1%
2013 371,272 14,254,245,896 38,393 6.9%
2014 374,158 14,993,633,534 40,073 - 5.4%
2015 376,353 15,631,445,502 41,534 4.6%
2016* 377,537 15,680,621,758 41,534 4.4%

Note 1: Bureau of Econonic Analysis. The 2006 to 2009 and 2011 through 2014 pa~ ~ ion is estimated.

US Census data was used for the 2010 population numbers.

Note 2: Data came from the US Depart of Labor.

Note 3: (-) Bureau of Economic Analysis: the bureau used census midyear population estimates.

* 2016 completed information was not availabe for population, Total Personal Icome and per capita personal income.

2015 numbers were used
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Batler Cnanty, Okio
County Government 'es by Fuactioa/Activity
Lust 1en vears

Auunwr 27 22 22 22 17 19 19 15 14 12
Vehicles 9 8 - - - - - - - -
1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
ices 21 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
39 33 30 24 28 30 27 23 24
DOAra o1 CIBCUONS 57 97 85 91 109 116 110 28 28 23
* Board of Elections Elaction Pay - - 1,735 2672 3,071 4,121 4,482 1.550 1,301 2,013
Commissioners 9 8 6 7 8 8 14 12 12 9
Commissioners Criminal Ju: loard 1 - - - - - - - -
Commissioners Department ui ueovelopment 25 23 16 12 1 1 12 13 11 16
Commissioners Dog and Kennel 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 - - -
Commissioners Entitlernent 5 6 6 [ 7 6 4 3 4 4
Commissioners Information Services - 25 23 19 19 19 18 17 21 23
Commissioners Mail Room 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Commissioners Maintenance 6 7 € 4 5 5 4 4 5 5
Commissioners Central Human Resources - - - - - - 3 3 3
Commissioners Parking Garage 3 3 3 3 2 2 3 3 4
Commissioners Records Center 12 9 4 3 4 3 3 4 4 4
Commissioners Tax Abatement 1 1 - - - - . - - -
Commissioners Elected Officials 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Law Library 2 2 2 4 4 3 3 3 3 3
Microfilm Board - - - - - - - - 3 3
Prot | Attomey 52 55 54 51 53 52 51 51 49 48
Prosecuung Attomey C 4 5 4 4 3 4 4 5 3 6
Prosecuting Attomey Domeatic Violence 1 1 1 - - - - - - -
Prosecuting Attorney DTAC 6 8 7 6 7 ] 3 3 3
Prosecuting Attorney Elected Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Public Defender 6 38 42 42 39 38 40
Recorder 17 17 17 14 13 13 13 12 12 12
Recorder Elected Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Treasurer 16 17 1 1 10 10 10 6 8 13
'or DTAC 5 4 8 8 8 8 7 6 6 2
1reasurer Elacted Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Treasurer PPTax C 2 1 1 - - - - - - -
Treasurer Prepayment interest 1 1 1 - - 2 - - -
Judicial
Area Court~ 26 26 27 16 20 14 15 15 16 16
Area Court cted Official 3 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3 3
Area Courts Special Projects 23 21 21 20 18 18 19 18 14 15
Cierk of Courts 46 43 39 38 41 36 35 33 31 35
Clerk of Courts Elected Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Clerk of Courts Title 38 38 43 43 30 N 31 27 30 29
Common Pleas Court 29 31 31 29 30 25 23 18 23 18
Common Pleas Drug Court 8 8 7 7 6 8 6 8 6 5
Commeon Pleas Elected Official 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Common Pleas General Division Special Projects 8 8 8 8 7 8 ] 7 8 6
Common Pleas Jury Commission 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Domestic Relations Court 29 32 27 24 22 21 25 22 21 23
Domestic Relations Elected Official 2 2 2 2 3 1 2 2 2 2
Domestic Relations Special P1 - - - - - - - - 1 1
Juvenile Court 53 59 53 47 48 45 44 42 41 41
Juvenile Court Driver Improvement 1 - - - - - - -
Juvenile Court Elected Official 2 2 2 2 3 2 2 2 2 2
Juvenile Court Special Projects 1 2 2 2 2 2 3 3 2 3
Juvenile Detention 52 54 45 37 39 39 41 43 35 40
Juvenile Family Drug Court 2 - - - - - - - - -
Juvenile Reclaim Grant 26 26 21 22 24 23 22 24 24 25
Juvenile Rehab 49 46 41 38 39 39 40 28 33 28
Juvenile Subsidy Grant ] 9 8 - - - - - - -
Municipal Court 36 39 39 40 42 41 20 12 11 10
Municipal Court Criminal Prosecutors 1 1 1 - - - - - - -
Municipal Court Elected Official 5 5 5 5 4 4 3 3 3 3
Probate Court 17 17 14 15 14 15 14 17 18 18
Probate Court Comg 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Probat Electe 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
(Continued)

186



Butler County, Ohio
County Gov oyees by Function/Activity
vas sca Years

AUUR FTULAUIN 34 a3 k7] 32 32 38 38 a7 39 33
Adult Probatio= ===t~ 12 11 10 15 13 13 14 13 10 19
Adult Probatio 4 8 8 5 4 4 4 7 g 5
Auditor Dog ana nennei 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Coroner 7 8 13 1 9 10 10 8 8 1
Coroner Elected Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Coroner Lab and Morgue 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 - . .
Sheri“ 336 337 320 268 326 317 334 359 380 389
Sheri cted Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Shart ‘amedic 35 a7 34 34 37 39 26 21 16 27
wt solutions - - - - - - - - - -
it vog and Kennel - - - - - - . 3 4 5
ergency Management 3 4 4 5 5 5 5 5 3 3
Public Works
Commissioners Regional Airport 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Engineers 87 91 87 97 90 95 94 KAl 7 71
Engineer ed Official 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Engineers ria Room 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 2 2
Heaith
Alcohol and Drug Addiction 6 6 5 7 8 7 6 5 - -
Board of Developmental Disabilities 297 256 243 233 242 221 227 198 191 162
Mental Health Board 10 10 10 8 9 8 8 8 - -
Mental Health and Addiction Recovery Services Board - - - - - . - - 12 12
Human Services
Child Support Enforcement Agency 89 83 81 75 67 62 66 69 69 69
County Care Facllity 179 173 172 172 161 170 157 126 112 119
Job and Family Service~/"+i4-~n Services Agency 400 370 344 326 274 244 262 248 265 277
Job and Family Service B - 8 - - - 1 - - -
Prosecuting Attomey VuLa 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3
Sheriff VOCA 1 1 3 2 2 1 2 1 1 2
Sheriffs Victim Assistance Program 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Veteran Servicas 10 10 10 10 1 10 12 10 1 1
Veteran Ser Commissioners 4 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Internal Service
[of issi C i 4 4 3 3 3 3 4 3 3 2
[of i8si s Health | - - - - - - - - 1 1 1
Auditor Health Insurance 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Enterprise
Water And Sewer 156 144 131 114 126 101 97 26 95 9
Agency
** Court of Appeals - 12th District 22 26 25 25 24 24 24 - - -
Health Department 37 35 60 66 67 67 75 36 37 38
Metro Parks 28 42 38 34 52 53 57 68 ral 74
Regional Transit Authority 12 17 - - - - - - - -
Soil and Water Conservation 6 7 7 3 4 4 4 4 4 4
Total 2621 2,597 4,182 4,963 5,403 6,373 6,762 3,570 3,321 4,061
* Board of Election ction Pay individuals began »=i~ treated as employees in 2009. ** Court of Appeals - 12th District employeces are employees paid by the
Not included in ¢...,..oyment numbers for Princip: ployers State and not by Butler County beginning in 2014.

= Beginning in 2014, employee counts are based on the last payroll of the year, pius board of elections poilworkers.
NOTE: This report counts employees not positions. Large fluctuations are often a result of employee turnover, part time and intermittent employees

Source: Butler County Auditor
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Butler County, Ohio
Oper. ~ Indicators by Function/Program
Last Ten Years

Jobs and Family Services

Average client count - food stamps 26 29,798 39,380 46,176 48,758 48,346 50,603 47,781 45,473 40,701

Average client count - Medicaid 42,851 45,015 50,013 54,858 56,582 61,944 66,092 76,321 85,288 86,621

Average client count - day care 1,778 1,926 2,112 2,313 2,476 1,943 2,371 2,542 2,439 2,802

Average client count - WIA 434 567 712 652 937 634 326 326 - 2,200
Children's Services

Average client count - foster care 355 359 324 346 331 369 369" 455 - 397

Average ( count - adoption 36 39 51 52 98 48 48" 56 - 91
Child Support Enforcement Agency

Average number of active support orders 17,974 17,710 19,189 19,168 19,782 19,389 19,072 18,962 18,726 18,374

Percentage collected 71.3% 69.9% 69.0% 68.0% 69.25% 70.29% 70.20% 69.77% 73.20% 72.65%

n Services
Number of veterans and/or dependents served 10,508 17,568 15,877 13,327 11,002 10,611 5,353 5,729 5,792 4,553
Amount of benefits paid to county wi H 616,469 824,332 869,962 711,824 581,882 473,448 473,448 839,686 810,734 894,184

Note: (-} Information not available.
(*) Alcohol & Drug Addiction Services and Mental Health Boards merged into one agency (MHARS) in July 2015
Source: Butler County Auditor
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BUTLER COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(A),(B)
Federal Grantor/ Pass Through/ Federal Passed Cash
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Through to Federal
Program Title Number Number  Subrecipient Disbursements
U.S DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
Passed Through Ohio Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
(©),(G) School Breakfast Program 2016 10.553 $ 50,672
(©).(G) National School Lunch Program 2016 10.555 98,192
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 148,864
Passed Through Ohio Department of Jobs & Family Services:
State Administrative Matching Grants for the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program G-1617-11-5490 10.561 1,659,945
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 1,808,809
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
(E),(3),(L)  Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-14-UC-39-0008 14.218 10,872 343,410
(E),(3),(L)  Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-15-UC-39-0008 14.218 154,491 627,426
(E),(3),(L)  Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants B-16-UC-39-0008 14.218 16,916 16,916
Total Community Development Block Grants/Entitlement Grants 182,279 987,752
(E) Shelter Plus Care OHO0430L5E071403 14.238 132,577
(E) Shelter Plus Care OHO0431L5E071403 14.238 122,949
(E) Shelter Plus Care OHO0159L5E071402 14.238 146,722
(E) Shelter Plus Care OHO0430L5E071504 14.238 52,779
(E) Shelter Plus Care OHO0431L5E071504 14.238 50,580
Total Shelter Plus Care 505,607
(E) Home Investment Partnerships Program M-13-DC-39-0222 14.239 - 1,041
(E),(3) Home Investment Partnerships Program M-14-DC-39-0222 14.239 121,000 226,182
(E),(J) Home Investment Partnerships Program M-15-DC-39-0222 14.239 149,633 488,293
(E),(J) Home Investment Partnerships Program M-16-DC-39-0222 14.239 18,410 18,410
Total Home Investment Partnerships Program 289,043 733,926
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 471,322 2,227,285
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
(E) State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 2016-AP-BX-0797 16.606 87,295
(E) Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2014-DJ-BX-0811 16.738 11,935
(E) Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2015-DJ-BX-0242 16.738 28,804
(E) Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 2015-JG-A01-6801 16.738 36,582
Total Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 77,321
Passed Through Ohio Office of Criminal Justice Services:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 2015-WF-VA5-8807 16.588 45,794
Passed Through Ohio Attorney General's Office:
Crime Victim Assistance 2016-VOCA-19810790 16.575 83,706
Crime Victim Assistance 2017-VOCA-43552856 16.575 36,161
Crime Victim Assistance 2017-VOCA-43551983 16.575 21,341
Crime Victim Assistance 2015-VOCA-19810772 16.575 75,716
Total Crime Victim Assistance 216,924
Total U.S. Department of Justice 427,334
(Continued)
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BUTLER COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(Continued)

(A).(B)
Federal Grantor/ Pass Through/ Federal Passed Cash
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Through to Federal
Program Title Number Number Subrecipient Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR
Passed Through Ohio Department of Jobs & Family Services:
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act Cluster:
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Adult Program N/A 17.258 707,996
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Adult Administrative N/A 17.258 21,942
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Transitional Funds N/A 17.258 7,835
Total Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Adult Program 737,773
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Youth Activities N/A 17.259 336,496
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Youth Administrative N/A 17.259 14,063
Total Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Youth Activities 350,559
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Dislocated Worker Formula N/A 17.278 941,948
Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Dislocated Worker Formula Grants -
Administrative N/A 17.278 11,230
Total Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act - Dislocated Workers Formula Grants 953,178
Total Workforce Investment and Opportunity Act Cluster 2,041,510
Total U.S. Department of Labor 2,041,510
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION / FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION
Passed Through Ohio Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction PID 90755 20.205 1,622,671
Highway Planning and Construction PID 91888 20.205 70,837
Highway Planning and Construction PID 94288 20.205 838,222
Highway Planning and Construction PID 98577 20.205 337,112
Highway Planning and Construction PID 87088 20.205 8,062
Total Highway Planning and Construction 2,876,904
Passed through the Ohio Department of Public Safety:
Highway Safety Cluster:
State and Community Highway Safety STEP-2016-9-00-00-00462-00 20.600 24,247
State and Community Highway Safety STEP-2016-9-00-00-00481-00 20.600 11,558
National Priority Safety Programs IDEP-2016-9-00-00-00389-00 20.616 34,466
National Priority Safety Programs IDEP-2017-9-00-00-00418-00 20.616 12,332
Total Highway Safety Cluster 82,603
Airport Improvement Program N/A 20.106 35,358
Total U.S. Department of Transportation / Federal Highway Administration 2,994,865
(Continued)
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BUTLER COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

(Continued)

(A).(B)
Federal Grantor/ Pass Through/ Federal Passed Cash
Pass Through Grantor Entity CFDA Through to Federal
Program Title Number Number  Subrecipient Disbursements
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Passed Through Ohio Emergency Management Agency:
Emergency Management Performance Grant EMW-2015-EP-0034-S01 97.042 68,048
Emergency Management Performance Grant EMC-2016-EP-00003-S01 97.042 70,965
Total Emergency Management Performance Grant 139,013
Homeland Security Grant Program EMW-2015-SS-00086 97.067 3,134
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 142,147
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Drug-Free Communities Support Program Grants N/A 93.276 110,923
Passed Through Ohio Department of Mental Health:
Projects for Assistance in Transition from Homelessness (PATH) N/A 93.150 59,780
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services N/A 93.958 221,899
Passed Through Ohio Department of Alcohol and Drug Addiction Services:
Block Grants for Prevention and Treatment of Substance Abuse N/A 93.959 2,061,039
Passed Through Ohio Department of Jobs & Family Services:
Promoting Safe and Stable Families G-1617-11-5490 93.556 204,936
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families G-1617-11-5490 93.558 2,797,308
Child Support Enforcement G-1617-11-5490 93.563 3,053,402
Child Care and Development Block Grant G-1617-11-5490 93.575 310,912
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program G-1617-11-5490 93.645 298,431
Foster Care_Title IV-E G-1617-11-5490 93.658 3,794,119
Adoption Assistance G-1617-11-5490 93.659 2,095,535
Social Services Block Grant G-1617-11-5490 93.667 2,614,279
Social Services Block Grant N/A 93.667 194,643
Social Services Block Grant N/A 93.667 183,497
Total Title XX Social Service Block Grant 2,992,419
Chaffee Foster Care Independence Program G-1617-11-5490 93.674 108,271
Medical Assistance Program G-1617-11-5490 93.778 2,402,753
Medical Assistance Program N/A 93.778 774,482
Total Title XIX Medical Assistance Program 3,177,235
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 21,286,209
Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 471,322 $ 30,928,159
(Continued)



BUTLER COUNTY
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016
(Continued)

Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards:

(A) This schedule includes the federal award activity of Butler County under programs of the federal government for the year ended December 31, 2016 and is prepared in accordance with the cash
basis of accounting. The information on this schedule is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of Butler County, it is not intended to and does not
present the financial position, changes in net position, or cash flows of Butler County.

(B) Certain federal programs require the County contribute non-federal funds (matching funds) to support the federally funded programs. The County has complied with the matching requirements. The
expenditure of non-federal matching funds are not included on the schedule.

(C) Included as part of the "Child Nutrition Cluster" in determining major programs.

(D) Included as part of the "Highway Safety Cluster" in determining major programs.

(E) Grant was received directly from the federal agency.

(F) Included as part of the "Workforce Investment Act and Opportunity Cluster" in determining major programs.

(G) Cash receipts from the U.S. Department of Agriculture are commingled with State grants. It is assumed federal monies are expended first.
(H) This portion of the program was passed through the Ohio Department of Mental Health.

(1) This portion of the program was passed through the Ohio Department of Developmental Disabilities.

(J) The County passes certain federal awards received from various agencies to other governments or not-for-profit agencies (subrecipients). As Note A describes, the County reports expenditures of
Federal awards to subrecipients when paid in cash. As a subrecipient, the County has certain compliance responsibilities, such as monitoring its subrecipients to help assure they use these subawards
as authorized by laws, regulations, and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements, and that subrecipients achieve the award’s performance goals.

(K) Pass-through number was unable to be obtained for this grant.

(L) The County has established a revolving loan program to provide low-interest loans to businesses that are creating jobs and meet the other program requirements. The Federal Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) grants money for these loans to the County passed through the Ohio Department of Development. The initial loan of this money is recorded as a disbursement
on the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule). Loans repaid, including interest, are used to make additional loans. Such subsequent loans are subject to certain
compliance requirements imposed by HUD, but are not included as disbursements on the Schedule.

These loans are collateralized by mortgages on the property. At December 31, 2016, the gross amount of loans outstanding under this program was $225,566.

(M) CFR Section 200.414 of the Uniform Guidance allows a non-federal entity that has never received a negotiated indirect cost rate to charge a de minimis rate of 10% of modified total direct costs to
indirect costs. The County has not elected to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate.



Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Required by Government Auditing Standards

Butler County
130 High Street
Hamilton, Ohio 45011

To the Board of County Commissioners:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the Comptroller
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Butler County, Ohio, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Butler County’s basic financial statements
and have issued our report thereon dated June 28, 2017. Our report refers to other auditors who audited the financial
statements of the Butler County Port Authority, a discretely presented component unit of Butler County, as
described in our report on Butler County’s financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other
auditors’ testing of internal control over financial reporting or compliance and other matters that those auditors
separately reported.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As part of our financial statement audit, we considered Butler County’s internal control over financial reporting
(internal control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the extent necessary to
support our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on the effectiveness of
Butler County’s internal control. Accordingly, we have not opined on it.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct misstatements. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting in a reasonable
possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a material misstatement of Butler
County’s financial statements. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider
material weaknesses. However, unidentified material weaknesses may exist.



Board of County Commissioners
Butler County

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether Butler County’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance
with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement amounts. However, opining
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance or other matters we must report under
Government Auditing Standards which are described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 2016-001
through 2016-003.

Butler County’s Response to Findings

Butler County’s responses to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying corrective action
plan. We did not audit Butler County’s responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

Purpose of this Report

This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, and does
not opine on the effectiveness of Butler County’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part
of an audit performed under Government Auditing Standards in considering Butler County’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Julian & Grube, Inc.
June 28, 2017



Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable
to Each Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

Butler County
130 High Street
Hamilton, Ohio 45011

To the Board of County Commissioners:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Butler County’s compliance with the applicable requirements described in the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Compliance Supplement that could directly and materially affect each of Butler
County’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016. The Summary of Auditor’s Results in the
accompanying schedule of findings identifies Butler County’s major federal programs.

Management’s Responsibility

Butler County’s Management is responsible for complying with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on Butler County’s compliance for each of Butler County’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the applicable compliance requirements referred to above. Our compliance audit followed
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards for financial audits included in
the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). These standards and the Uniform Guidance require us to
plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure whether noncompliance with the applicable compliance
requirements referred to above that could directly and materially affect a major federal program occurred. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Butler County’s compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our compliance opinion on each of Butler County’s major
programs. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Butler County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Butler County complied, in all material respects with the compliance requirements referred to above
that could directly and materially affect each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2016.



Board of Commissioners
Butler County

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Butler County’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the applicable compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
compliance audit, we considered Butler County’s internal control over compliance with the applicable requirements
that could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to determine our auditing procedures appropriate
for opining on each major federal program’s compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not to the extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we have not opined on the effectiveness of Butler County’s internal control
over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or to timely detect
and correct, noncompliance with a federal program’s applicable compliance requirement. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a federal program
compliance requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected. A significant deficiency in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
federal program’s applicable compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control
over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not
been identified.

This report only describes the scope of our internal control over compliance tests and the results of this testing based
on Uniform Guidance requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have also audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely-presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
Butler County as of and for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Butler County’s basic financial statements. We issued our unmodified report thereon
dated June 28, 2017. We conducted our audit to opine on Butler County’s basic financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents additional analysis required by the Uniform
Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule is management’s responsibility,
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records management used to
prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected this schedule to the auditing procedures we applied to the
basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling this
schedule directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this schedule is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. Our opinion also explained that the Butler
County Port Authority, a discretely presented component unit, was audited by other auditors.

Julian & Grube, Inc.
June 28, 2017



BUTLER COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

2 CFR §200.515

DECEMBER 31, 2016

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

d) () Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unmodified
@)(@)(i) Were there any material control | No
weaknesses reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
@)(@)(i) Were there any significant deficiencies | No
in internal control reported at the
financial statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)()(ii) Was there any reported material | Yes
noncompliance at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal | No
control weaknesses reported for major
federal programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies | No
in internal control reported for major
federal programs?
d)(D)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unmodified
Opinion
(d)(1)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under | No
2 CFR 8200.516(a)?
" ; ; . Temporary  Assistance for  Needy
(@@)(vii) Major Programs (listed): Families (CFDA #93.558); Social
Services Block Grant (CFDA #93.667);
Medical Assistance Program (CFDA
#93.778); Block Grants for Prevention
and Treatment of Substance Abuse
(CFDA #93.959)
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs | Type A: >$927,845
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee under 2 CFR § Yes

200.5207?




BUTLER COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
2 CFR 8 200.515
DECEMBER 31, 2016

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

Finding Number 2016-001

Material Noncompliance

Ohio Revised Code Section 5705.36 in part, requires subdivisions to request increased or reduced amended
certificates of estimated resources upon determination by the fiscal officer that revenue to be collected will be
greater or less than the amount in the last certified amended certificate.

The County did not request timely amended certificates throughout the fiscal year upon notice of increased or
decreased resources.

The County is not properly certifying its most current estimated resources to the appropriate authorities and thus
causing appropriations to exceed estimated resources, throughout the fiscal year and at fiscal year-end.

We recommend that the County review its available resources versus its appropriations throughout the fiscal year
and file amended certificates when necessary. This will facilitate the County’s appropriation process.

Finding Number 2016-002

Material Noncompliance

Ohio Revised Code Section 5705.39 requires that a subdivision’s total appropriations from each fund should not
exceed total estimated resources.

The County had total appropriations exceeding total estimated resources in the following funds at December 31,
2016:

Governmental Fund Appropriations Resources Excess
Job and Family Services Fund $ 27,219,170 $ 25,288,057 $ 1,931,113
FAA Airport Grant Fund 166,842 (83,157) 249,999
Shefiff's VOCA-Even Fund 97,227 41,365 55,862

With appropriations exceeding estimated resources, the County may spend more funds than in the Treasury or in
process of collection and cause fund deficits.

We recommend the County comply with the Ohio Revised Code and Auditor of State Bulletin 97-010 and
continually monitor appropriations versus estimated resources records. If it is determined that estimated resources
will be different than initially anticipated, the County should amend its estimate and also amend the appropriations
as necessary; however, appropriations should not exceed estimated resources.
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BUTLER COUNTY

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
2 CFR 8 200.515
DECEMBER 31, 2016

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS - (Continued)

Finding Number 2016-003

Material Noncompliance

Ohio Revised Code Section 5705.36 (A)(4) states that upon a determination by the fiscal officer of a subdivision
that the revenue to be collected by the subdivision will be less than the amount included in an official certificate and
that the amount of the deficiency will reduce available resources below the level of current appropriations, the fiscal
officer shall certify the amount of the deficiency to the Budget Commission, and the Budget Commission shall
certify an amended certificate reflecting the deficiency.

The County had appropriations in excess of actual resources, which consists of actual revenues and beginning
unencumbered fund balance, in the following funds at December 31, 2016:

Estimated
Governmental Fund Appropriations Resources Excess
Job and Family Services Fund $ 27,219,170 $ 25,288,057 $ 1,931,113
FAA Airport Grant Fund 166,842 (83,158) 250,000
Shefiff's VOCA-Even Fund 97,227 41,366 55,861

By appropriating more funds than actual resources, the County is at risk of spending more money than is available;
this may result in negative fund balances.

We recommend the County monitor estimated resources in comparison with actual resources and appropriations,
and if necessary, obtain a decreased amended certificate and amend appropriations accordingly. Further guidance
may be found in Auditor of State bulletin 97-010.

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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BUTLER COUNTY

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN

2 CFR § 200.511(c)
DECEMBER 31, 2016

Anticipated Responsible
Finding Planned Corrective Completion Contact Person
Number Action Date
2016-001 The County_departments will monltgr revenues | o ober Bar_b Fabelo, Chief Financial
and expenditure budgets on a continual basis, Officer of the Job and
. 31, 2017 ; . i
entering budget amendments as necessary to Family Services Department;
increase or decrease the certificate of Ron Davis, Airport Director;
appropriation. The Budget Commission will Vickie  Barger, Finance
require  departments requesting  revenue Director for the Sheriff’s
reductions to enter budget amendments in Department
Munis reducing budget appropriations, if the
revenue reduction will create an excess of
appropriations.
2016-002 The County departments WI|! monitor the December Bar_b Fabelo, Chief Financial
budget on a continual basis and make Officer of the Job and
e 31, 2017 ; . i
modifications as necessary to ensure Family Services Department;
appropriations do not exceed estimated Ron Davis, Airport Director;
resources. Vickie  Barger, Finance
Director for the Sheriff’s
Department
2016-003 The County departments WI|! monitor the December Bar_b Fabelo, Chief Financial
budget on a continual basis and make 31 2017 Officer of the Job and

modifications as necessary to ensure
appropriations do not exceed actual resources.

Family Services Department;
Ron Davis, Airport Director;
Vickie  Barger, Finance
Director for the Sheriff’s
Department
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

BUTLER COUNTY

CLERK'’S CERTIFICATION
This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

ivan Poablett

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
SEPTEMBER 7, 2017

88 East Broad Street, Fourth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490
www.ohioauditor.gov
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